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FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2025· · · · · · · · · · · · 9:40 A.M.

· · · · · · · · · · · P R O C E E D I N G S

· · · · · · · · · · · · ·AGENDA ITEM 8a

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·---

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Next, we will move on to Agenda Item 8A.· And

this is a Public Hearing on the Draft Plan Bay Area 2050+ and

Draft Environmental Impact Report for Plan Bay Area 2050+.

· · And before I begin, I will say for those wanting to speak

and address these Commissioners and these directors, please do

fill out a Public Card Comment on the second blue card for the

EIR hearing.

· · So, these are right here.· The clerk -- we have clerks

available here that can assist you.· So please do, do that if

you are interested so that we can keep an orderly, an orderly

list of who is interested in speaking in public comment.

· · And although my strong suit is not sticking to scripts, I

have been duly informed today that I may not vary in my words at

any moment.· So I am going to look down, and I'm going to

concentrate, and I am not going to deviate.

· · Agenda Item 8A is the Public, is the Public Hearings on the

Draft Plan Bay Area 2050+ document and the Draft Environmental

Impact Report for Plan Bay Area 2050+.

· · As a reminder, Staff provided an overview of Draft Plan

Bay Area 2050+ and the Draft EIR to the MTC Planning Committee

and ABAG Administrative Committee at the October 2025 meeting.

· · On October 20th, 2025 MTC and ABAG Staff released the Draft

Plan and Draft EIR for public review and comment.· The release
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of these documents marks a major milestone in the 2.5-year

planning development process, which was informed by tens of

thousands of comments from Bay Area residents and partner

agencies and organizations across the nine counties.

· · As part of the release of the Draft Plan, a Senate Bill 375

requires the MTC and ABAG conduct three public hearings to

receive comments on the Draft Plan.· Today is the first of these

three hearings; with each Draft Plan hearing followed by a

public hearing on the Draft EIR.· Two additional hybrid public

meetings are scheduled for early December.

· · The details for participating in the upcoming hearings are

posted on the Plan Bay Area website at

planbayarea.org/draftplan.

· · Before opening up the hearing, I would like to note that the

Public Comment period will close promptly at 5:00 p.m. on

Thursday, December 18th, 2025.

· · In addition to the Public Hearings there are various other

ways to submit written and oral comments.· Complete details on

the various opportunities to participate and submit comments are

available on the planbayarea.org website.

· · Upon the close of the commentary on December 18th, 2025,

Staff will prepare a summary of all public comments received to

inform our decision-making prior to considering adoption of the

Draft Plan and its related supplemental reports.

· · The Commission and ABAG Executive Board will consider

adopting the Draft Plan and certifying the Draft EIR at a joint

meeting of the Commission and Executive Board in early 2026.

· · I will now open the Draft Plan hearing.· And we're going to
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get started with this first hearing.

· · To ensure we capture all comments correctly, we have a

Certified Court Reporter, Roseleen O'Brien, online.

Roseleen O'Brien is online with us today; who will be

transcribing your comments as you make them.

· · So that our Certified Court Reporter can read your comments

correctly, please begin by stating your name or state that you

want your comment to be anonymous.· If you are presenting an

agency or organization and want that included in the record,

please also state your organization's name.

· · When making your comments, please be sure to speak clearly

and into the microphone so our Certified Court Reporter,

Roseleen O'Brien, can hear and record everything you say.· If

they cannot hear or understand you, they may interrupt you and

you -- and ask you to slow down or speak up.

· · We ask that each speaker be brief and concise and keep their

comments to no more than two minutes.· If you have more

substantial comments, we encourage you to either mail or email

them to us.· Complete details on the various ways to submit

comments are available on the planbayarea.org website.

· · Once we've received everyone's oral testimony on the

Draft Plan, we'll close the first hearing and then open the

hearing on the Draft EIR.

· · Please be sure to make comments on the Draft Plan during the

first hearing and save any comments on the Draft EIR for the

second hearing.· So that's two separate hearings.

· · The Public Hearing on the Draft, Draft Plan is open.· And

it's -- and the supplemental reports are now being transcribed.
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· · If you wish to testify, please speak.· Please submit a

speaker card.· Or if you're on Zoom, use the "raised hand"

feature or dial "*9," and the Clerk will call upon you.

· · As a reminder when making your comments, please state your

name.· And if you wish to be anonymous for the record, state so.

And tell us your organization if applicable.· And speak clearly

into the microphone so that the court reporter can capture your

comments accurately.

· · Okay.· Okay.· There we go.

· · So now we will take, we will take Public Comment at this

point for the Draft Plan.

· · Do we have speaker cards, Madame Clerk?

· · THE CLERK:· Yes, we do.

· · First is going to be Grace Khan followed by Deborah Murphy.

And then Susan Kirsch followed by Elizabeth Henry.· Then

Manson Leung.

· · Grace Kahn.

· · MS. KAHN:· Here.

· · Hi.· Good morning.· I'm Grace Kahn.· I'm a member of the

Self-Help Senior Center for many, many years.· You can tell my

hair.· And the program give me fulfilled life after retired.

I'm looking forward to go to the center every day.· They open on

weekdays.

· · In the morning we have Kung Fu exercise, and then we have

nutritional lunch meal.· In between those meals we have bingos,

we have line dance, and also we have Karaoke.

· · So, I enjoy the program very much.· I wish they will -- you

guys can support us.· I'm looking forward to go there every day
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when I woke up in the morning.· Not only I didn't have to cook

for my lunch but I can see my friends and share my happiness and

sadness.· We are the same age of friends.

· · Sometime you -- I have children, but they have their life.

And sometimes I'm unhappy; I didn't want to show them, to show

them to keep them burden.· But I can share with my senior

citizens by the eyeball; with them listening to me.· I kind of

get the support and the sympathy from them.

· · So after retire, I find this Center.· I'm so lucky.· And I

do wish the funding would continue to keep us help enjoy our

life when we retire.

· · Thank you very much.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Okay.· Next is Deborah Murphy followed by Susan Kirsch.

· · And if you all could start to line up, we'd appreciate it if

you're able to.

· · MS. MURPHY:· I'm Deborah Murphy.· I'm President of the

Coalition for San Francisco Neighborhoods and a

second-generation San Franciscan.

· · And I'm here to speak about the Summary of Daily Travel

Metrics.· The column lists the base year 2023 and the

projections for 2050.

· · You're starting with the noticeable projection that comes

with 200 -- 381,000 -- 381,000 hours of recurring delay in

traffic.· You're projecting a population growth that just isn't

there.

· · Another question data point is a forecast that daily transit

passenger miles will increase by 15,758,000; a leap of
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256,000 percent.

· · To achieve the 2050 values, average growth rates of more

than 5 percent are needed.· Transportation expert Tom Rubin says

no major U.S. transit system has done this post-World War II.

· · These projections make no sense.· The MTC Staff needs to

correct their modeling and recalculate their findings for the

summary of daily travel metrics to be credible.

· · Thank you.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Thank you.

· · Next speaker.

· · THE CLERK:· Susan Kirsch followed by Elizabeth Henry.

· · MS. KIRSCH:· Good morning.

· · Susan Kirsch from Catalysts for Local Control.

· · You've got a copy of my article that was published in the

Marin Voice in your packet.

· · I'm a 45-year resident of the Bay Area.· And I'd like to

speak about the Plan Bay Area Table 2.14.· It's called Regional

Growth Forecast of Population, Employment, Households, and

Housing Units.

· · And what I'd like to point out in that table is that your

population projections in that table are showing that you expect

1.8 million new residents in this time period between 2020 and

2050.· That would be a 24 percent increase in that time period.

· · The Department of Finance, who's often recognized as one of

the most credible projectionists for population, estimates that

population growth will be 6.4 percent.

· · We have this discrepancy between a 6.4 percent population

increase coming from the Department of Finance and your
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MTC Staff projecting a growth rate of 24 percent.

· · That seems to be a remarkable discrepancy between those two

measurements of what is the population growth.· And those

increased -- that kind of unbelievable number falls over into

the projections for employment where your -- the MTC Staff is

projecting a 35 percent increase.· That's representing a growth

$1.4 million.

· · For households it's projecting a 36 percent increase of over

a million new households.· And in housing units it's projecting

a 39 percent increase.

· · These numbers seem fanciful, maybe aspirational but not

grounded in truth and logic.· I urge you to recommend the Staff

to look at the projections and the methodology again.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Elizabeth Henry followed by Manson Leung.

· · MS. HENRY:· Hi.· I'm Elizabeth Henry.· I'm from Lafayette,

California.· And I am a member of Catalysts For Local Control as

well.

· · I want to second my two previous speakers and what they've

said.

· · You know, I haven't read the entire Plan, but what I have

read I kept -- I'm a retired fifth grade teacher.· And I've been

following, following the, quote, unquote, housing crisis and the

legislature's solution for it since I retired in 2019.

· · And I have to say that MTC's, this Plan, seems to be

correlated based on the exact same kind of criteria that the

housing crisis was based on.· And that is not based on facts.
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That is not based on data.· That is not based on studies as

Susan mentioned.

· · You know, the fact is that the Bay Area, the State of

California, has lost population.· You should all be aware of

that.· We've lost a congressional seat because of that.· And the

Department of Finance 2023 report showed that the trend is

leveling out until the year 2060.

· · So, for you to base the population growth on, as far as I

can tell, you base it on the same thing that the legislature is,

this Turner Center has been debunked.· It has been proven to be,

you know, false information.

· · And I would hate to see the MTC or any organization,

governmental body try to force development, force more money

being taken out of our pockets to fund something that it's not

real.· It's not going to happen.

· · And I'm sorry.· I didn't realize I was over time.

· · So, please direct your Staff to revisit this whole thing

from a reality point.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Next speaker, please.

· · MR. LEUNG:· I guess my clock start right now.

· · Good morning.· My name is Manson Leung.· I'm with the

Self-Help For The Elderly in San Francisco.

· · The reason why we're here with the elderly is -- and this

Plan is very comprehensive.· However, I want to remind everybody

San Francisco, City and County of San Francisco, is very unique.

More than 50 percent of the population is not -- is outside of

the normal; is a foreigner like myself.· And the Plan do not
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include a lot of language to support the language, the culture,

and the education and information of the Plan or set forward in

the Plan.

· · So, we are looking forward for your community to provide

more language support and cultural support for the population

which is really unique in California.· Because I think we have

the highest population of foreigner in both outside of the

United States in the country.· I think like 30 percent of us,

including myself, are not born in the United States.

· · And I don't think your report have account in the future of

the 25 years how many of those new immigrant will be entering to

this City.· Because that will have a big effect to your

transportation, your education, and housing.

· · So, thank you.· And I hope that we can see more language

about covering the ethic minority in the state of San Francisco.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · That is all the in-house speakers.

· · We are now going to switch over to Zoom.

· · Our first speaker is going to be CoCo Tax followed by Marcus

Navarra.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Thank you, Madame Clerk.

· · And I'll just remind everyone we do have two minutes for

public comment.

· · We'll proceed with the next public comment online.

· · MR. JOFFE:· Yes.· Good morning, Commissioners.

· · My name is Marc Joffe.· I'm the president of the

Contra Costa Tax Payers Association or CoCo Tax.· I'm also a
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Walnut Creek resident.· And I'm pleased to see

Councilmember Silva here.

· · I looked at the Plan, and I added up the cost of all of the

strategies that are recommended.· And it adds up to close to

$1.5 trillion.

· · As we learned from the last election, affordability is a

major concern of voters across the country right now.· And it's

going to be very hard to come up with $1.5 trillion even over

25 years.

· · A lot of the strategies are around dealing with the climate

crisis.· It's important to recognize that the Bay Area accounts

for 0.2 percent or less of global greenhouse gas emissions.· We

in the Bay Area are not going to solve climate change.· And to

spend billions and billions of dollars to pretend that we're

going to do so might make people feel good, but it's not really

going to move the dial.

· · Among the many expensive strategies I noticed was

$11 billion to provide wired internet to underserved

communities.· It seems like there's no recognition that we now

have satellite-based internet that could be deployed more

cheaply.

· · I just want to say that I think there will probably be a

very strong impetus to try to collect as much federal funding as

possible to get the 1.5 trillion that's needed here.· But

remember, under the unfriendly Trump Administration very little

federal money will be available to us; even after 2029.· The

nation is very fiscally constrained.

· · And then finally, consider from an equity point of view.
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We're the richest part of the country.· Why should we be

competing with funds that might be better spent in more

deserving places like Detroit and St. Louis?

· · Thank you very much for your attention.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next up is Marcus Navarra followed by Roland.

· · Marcus, go ahead and unmute yourself.· You have two minutes.

· · MR. NAVARRA:· Hello.· My name is Marcus Navarra.· And I have

a few comments on some of the strategies and draft

implementation actions identified in Plan Bay Area 2050+.

· · For strategy T5 which says, "Implement pricing strategies to

manage demand," I would like to see more ambition and including

tolling freeways, fully tolling freeways, that have good transit

alternatives.· For example, the 101 freeway, which parallels

Caltrain.

· · For strategies T6 and T7, "Modernize freeways and

interchanges and expand freeways and mitigate impacts," I would

really like to see less freeway expansion because freeway

expansion doesn't solve traffic.· And it contributes to the

climate crisis.· And if we don't expand freeways, we don't have

to pay for the -- for mitigating the impact; so we could save a

lot of money that way.

· · Strategy H5, "Integrate affordable housing into all major

housing projects."· I think it is a mistake to require

affordable housing in all housing projects.· It will result in

less affordable housing being built overall.· I think it would

be better to offer incentives for affordable housing units being

added to projects.· This is a situation where I think the carrot
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is going to be more powerful than the stick.

· · For Draft Implementation Action 24, "Explore approaches to

improve the efficiency and cost effectiveness of transportation

project delivery with partners," I would like to see more

emphasis placed on this action because high-transit costs are a

huge problem, especially in the Bay Area.

· · Many places like Spain, Italy, and China have gotten costs

to be extremely low.· So, we should look to them for inspiration

and guidance.· You know, we have -- they would certainly be

willing to help us I think.· And I think that it would be really

important to look to outside of the U.S. to gain inspiration on

how to reduce our costs.

· · Those are the comments I have on the Plan.· Thank you very

much for your time.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next up is Roland followed by Tim Rubin.

· · MR. LEBRUN:· Good morning, Commissioners.

· · My name is Roland Lebrun, spelled L-e-b-r-u-n.· I live in

South San Jose.

· · I would like to reiterate the comments I made at the

MTC workshop that the Plan fails to account for over 800,000

residents in bedroom communities in Santa Cruz, Monterey, and

San Benito Counties.· These residents commute daily to

Silicon Valley.· And the Plan needs to address their

transportation needs.

· · Many of these residents, as a matter of fact, would use

Caltrain if there was such a service, a reliable service.· And

that includes weekends.· Because many elected officials in these
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counties have counted -- have pointed out that the Bay Area

likes Monterey Bay on weekends.· And this is what is causing the

massive congestion on Highway 101 in South Santa Clara County

every day of the week.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you, Roland.

· · Next up is Tim Rubin followed by Mei-Ling Stefan.

· · MR. RUBIN:· Thank you.· My name is Tom Rubin.· I live in

Oakland, California.

· · I am active in SHIFT, formerly known as 20BILLION Reasons.

I have been involved in transportation consulting, auditing, and

as an executive manager in the Bay Area for over 50 years,

including a lot of work with MTC.

· · I have actually printed out the documents, at least most of

them, for this.· And including the EIS and related documents, it

is approximately 20 inches.· I think I'm not telling the Members

of the Commission anything when I say no one could possibly read

this, and all of you have at least one other full-time job.

· · This is a terrible Plan.· You have already heard from many

people of the incredible number of errors, internal

inconsistencies, et cetera.· On the first Bay Area Plan, Plan

Bay Area, I alone put in over 130 pages of errors.

· · I am asking you, as the Commissioners, to not depend solely

on your Staff to tell you what's in there.· I advise you to

seriously consider for each Commissioner, you being able to

select and hire either a consultant or an employee paid by MTC

who will work solely for you and advise you on what the

Commission is doing so you are not dependent on the
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Commission Staff.

· · We will be following up with detailed reports on all of the

errors, omissions, internal inconsistencies, and flights of

logic that are wrong in the Plan.

· · Please.· Please, you must do better.· And it's up to you to

do better.· You cannot rely, unfortunately, on the MTC Staff.

· · Thank you for your consideration.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next up is Mei-Ling Stefan followed by Robert Cox.

· · MS. STEFAN:· Good morning.

· · My name is Mei-Ling Stefan, Sunnyvale resident with a deep

interest in sustainability and environment.

· · In the project description on transportation, for instance,

on page 112 of the DEIR pdf file, it is stated that the expected

transportation revenue will be $512 billion.

· · As I understand, taxpayers subsidize our public transit

system.· I'd like to request the Commission to direct Staff to

show a breakdown of the revenue sources.· In particular we

should know how much of the expected revenue will come from

future taxes, bonds, or increased tolls in the Plan Bay Area

2050+.

· · Higher costs of living will make more people leave for,

leave for other states or leave from the Bay Area.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next up is Robert Cox followed by Gregg Dieguez.

· · MR. COX:· Okay.· Can you hear me?

· · THE CLERK:· We can hear you.
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· · MR. COX:· Okay.· Thank you.

· · My name is Robert Cox.· I live in Mountain View.· I'm not

speaking for any organization.· But I just want to let you know

that I was a Planning Commissioner for eight years in this City,

Vice-Chair twice, Chair twice.· And I serve as the Vice-Chair of

the Rental Housing Committee right now.· And I've also been the

Vice-Chair or Chair of the Old Mountain View Neighborhood

Association for fifteen years.

· · So, I have a lot of experience in our local situation here

and the statistics that have been gathered about what's going on

in our City.· And I know a little bit about the Bay Area too.

· · I want to echo what Susan Kirsch and Tom Rubin have said

about, you know, this idea that there would be a close to

25 percent increase in Bay Area population by 2025.· It just, it

seems to be routed in the idea of taking pre-Covid projections

and just drawing the line up as if Covid hadn't happened; it had

not fundamentally changed things around here.

· · In Mountain View, our Economic Vitality Report indicated

that the City has 19 percent of its office space remains vacant.

New apartments, we have 14 percent vacancies.· This is because a

lot of people have moved to remote locations to do tech work and

also Artificial Intelligence is displacing people, particularly

in low-level tech jobs.

· · It also looks like, you know, these estimates don't reflect,

you know, the idea that autonomous vehicles are replacing the

use of traditional transit.· And that needs to be taken into

account because that could be a major earthquake in terms of how

we deal with transit in the future.
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· · So, please go back and revisit these numbers based on the

true post-Covid reality.

· · Thank you very much.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · And next up is Gregg Dieguez followed by Dan Haggerty.

· · MR. DIEGUEZ:· I'm Gregg Dieguez of Coastside Montara,

San Mateo County.· I've both taught computer simulation at MIT

and developed several software systems for both causal and

financial modeling.

· · In writing I'll detail many flaws in the DEIR and the Plan.

And while I support the prior comments on inaccurate population

forecasts and the Plan's failure to consider more agile,

affordable, and convenient transit alternatives that are also

less expensive, I'm here to comment on something even more

important.

· · While this is not an elected body, which is

disenfranchising, some of the MTC Commissioners are elected

officials.· So, in addition to the many comments you will

receive about how this Plan is misleading, incomplete,

incorrect, and internally inconsistent, it is also

disenfranchising.

· · Two minutes to speak is nowhere close time just to address

1,500 pages of documents asking for 1,500 billion, that is,

$1.5 trillion to improperly address this region's real

priorities, which includes healthcare and education not covered

in the Plan.

· · Holding none of the three public comment meetings on this

Plan and DEIR in San Mateo or Santa Clara Counties is also
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disenfranchising.· Holding public comment during the workday is

also disenfranchising.

· · And having this process run by an unelected bureaucracy with

a proven track record of project mismanagement, operational

incompetence, and financial mismanagement, which we shall

document, is both disenfranchising and fact.

· · So, I call on those of who are elected officials to act in

the best interests of your constituents and not be swayed by the

campaign contributions you may have received from THIC, that is,

the Transit Housing Industrial Complex.

· · Please reject this Plan, this DEIR, and this process and

call for a truly informed and participatory method of regional

planning run by an independent organization, please.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next up will be Dan Haggerty followed by Vinay Pimple.

· · MR. HAGGERTY:· Yes.· Hello.· Can you hear me?

· · THE CLERK:· We can.

· · MR. HAGGERTY:· Yes.· Great.

· · Yeah.· My name's Dan Haggerty.· I live in El Granada,

San Mateo Coastside.

· · I grew up in the Sunset District of San Francisco.· And I

was exposed to a lot of beauty of San Francisco.· And I have

seen over the years, I'm still up there a lot, I see a lot of

the changes that have already been made that are somewhat

related to some of these, this Plan here.

· · I just wanted to say that I agree with Susan and Tom and

other members of Catalysts for Local Control.
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· · I strongly believe that this whole Plan is offtrack for

general populations.· I believe that living conditions for all

will deteriorate as a result of these proposed changes.

· · I want to paint a picture of the visuals of what

New York City and Chicago street life was in the late 1800s and

early 1900s.· People lived like rats in the over-crowded

streets.· Look for these images, and you will understand.  I

believe that this is not a direction we should be going towards.

· · The famous architect of the early 1900s Daniel Burnham

recognized that overcrowded living environments of that time was

not favorable for humanity.· He was a father of the

City Beautiful movement and had a vision to have humans live

happily in more open environments with trees and views.

· · This Plan will go in the opposite direction of Burnham's

vision.· Burnham's influence can be seen today in several

beautiful neighborhoods of San Francisco, including

St. Francis Wood, Ingleside Terrace, Westwood Park, and

Forest Hill.· No one in their right mind would use -- alter

these existing beautiful neighborhoods, and it should be used as

a model moving forward.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next up is Vinay Pimple.

· · Vinay, when you have 15 seconds left, I'll say "15."

· · Followed by Ann Duwe.

· · Vinay, go ahead.

· · MR. PIMPLE:· Thank you very much.

· · Vinay Pimple.· I serve on the Policy Advisory Council.
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· · I want to speak about a lot of the comments made about the

population issue.· And I agree with them, not so much that it is

over projected, or stuff like that, but there's a huge

unpredictability in the population forecast.· And because there

are two major components to it, one is fertility rates which can

be predicted with some degree of dependability; the other one is

immigration which is totally unpredictable.

· · You know, during the four years of the Biden Administration,

there were 10 million people who came into this country

illegally.· In these, in the next four years that number is

likely to be zero or close to.· And not just on a significant

chunk of the people who came here before have already left; a

bunch of them will leave over the next few years.

· · So based on the narrow election result in 2024, there will

basically be a drop of 15 to 20 million in what the population

could have been and what it is going to be.· And so that is the

huge amount of unpredictability in the world.

· · So, I would really like Staff to present to you the figures

based on fertility and the figures based on different

immigration scenarios separately.· Because most of these

immigration scenarios, the demographic experts don't know any

better than you do what they are likely to be.· It's a

guesswork.· It's a crapshoot.· You folks are politicians.· Your

guess is probably going to be better than theirs.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you, Vinay.

· · Our next speaker will be Ann Duwe followed by our last

speaker Adina Levin.
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· · MS. DUWE:· Good morning.

· · I'm Ann Duwe.· I live in Cupertino.· And I'm a member of

Catalysts for Local Control.

· · I would like to draw your attention to three areas that have

been mentioned by previous speakers and support their point of

view.· The three areas are the population projections, the

transit costs, and the numerous negative impacts that are

written into the Plan.

· · The population projections of Plan Bay Area seem wildly

inaccurate.· And as other speakers have said, your estimate is a

growth of 24 percent.· Department of Finance estimates only

6 percent growth in the period.· Independent estimates are more

in line with the Department of Defense finance figures.

· · Please recalculate.

· · Second, Bay Area Transit projects seem to be in financial

distress.· And MTC has a poor track record of managing large

projects.· Funding sources for major expenditures outlined in

the Plan seem totally inadequate unless the entire population is

taxed into insolvency.

· · Third, there are numerous negative impacts associated with

Plan Bay Area.· 41 of 67 negative impacts can't be mitigated;

yet planning continues as if there were no alternatives.· It is

time to seek much better alternatives.

· · Please use the Draft Environmental Impact Report to demand

revisions to these three areas of community support.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Our next speaker is going to be Adina Levin.
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· · Adina, go ahead and unmute yourself.

· · MS. LEVIN:· Hello.· Can you hear me?

· · THE CLERK:· I can hear you now.· Go ahead.

· · MS. LEVIN:· Great.· Fantastic.

· · My name is Adina Levin.· And I serve on the Policy Advisory

Council, but I am speaking for myself on this issue.

· · While there are certainly a lot of variables in doing a big

long-term plan, I am very glad that MTC is engaged in doing a

Plan that considers housing and land use and transportation

together.· That's something that is important to do.

· · Regarding housing and -- you know, we have probably the most

expensive housing in the country.· And that has to do with the

fact that we do not have enough housing overall.· And we also

need funding for subsidized housing and strategies to prevent

displacement, and having an overall strategy that works on those

issues is absolutely needed and complimented with transportation

strategies that can support the housing in a way that does not

lead to major traffic congestion, which means maintaining and

improving our public transportation system.

· · I am glad to see that there are strategies included to look

to how to have our (audio disruption).· And that is certainly

possible.· There are good practices from around the world that

are feasible for the Bay Area and California to take advantage

of.· That should be an excuse to, you know, go to a car-centric

system that will have massive traffic congestion, but it's a

good motivation to improve the practices we do as a region and a

state, for that matter.

· · Thank you.
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· · THE CLERK:· Thank you, Adina.

· · And we have one final speaker for Plan Bay Area,

Ken Bukowski.

· · The timer's going to be up there, okay?

· · MR. BUKOWSKI:· Okay.· Hi.· Good afternoon.

· · I'm Ken Bukowski.

· · On Plan Bay Area, there's a couple things in here that I

have some questions about.· One of them is the all-lane tolling.

I just don't see how that's going to be very effective as far as

solving any problems.· I think it's going to create a lot of

problems; make things more expensive and more difficult for

people to make a living.

· · And then the other one is the transportation.· You know,

transportation is a tool that's used to make land more valuable.

And I don't know why there's no explanation of getting property

owners to pay for some of the benefits they receive from this

transportation.· It's always, you know, more public money.· And

I think there was a time when transportation costs were fully

paid for by the private sector.· And I think that's where we

need to go.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · And we have an additional hand.

· · Howard Wong, did you want to speak on the Plan Bay Area

Draft or EIR?

· · MR. WONG:· Plan Bay Area.

· · THE CLERK:· Okay.· Go ahead.· You have two minutes.

· · MR. WONG:· Yeah.· On transportation and housing, the Bay



Page 25

Area Plan I think is an opportunity to look at and put forward

to the public best practices that we see around the world.

· · In transportation the Bay Area has spent billions of dollars

in transit projects.· And, yet, even before the pandemic, we had

declining transit modal share.

· · So the Bay Area, as a whole, has something in the range of

5 percent transit modal share.· San Francisco is higher, 23,

25 percent.· But after all these projects, when you see

declining ridership even before the pandemic and now inching up,

I think we need to look at other cities and countries, how their

investments have increased transit use.

· · Similarly with housing, many countries have programs and

projects that we should look at and put in the report, such as,

Vienna social housing or smaller units in most European

countries and Asian countries.

· · So, I think that rather than trying to reinvent the wheel,

we can look at cities and countries that have achieved many of

the goals that Plan Bay Area and our political entities have

strived for.· It is possible.· Especially with our vast wealth

and budgets, we can equal what other even less-developed

countries have achieved.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · There are no more members of the public wishing to speak

under the Draft Plan Bay Area Public Hearing.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Thank you so much.

· · At this time I will now declare this first Public Hearing of

the Draft Plan Bay Area 2050+ and its related supplemental
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reports to be closed.

· · As a reminder, public comments will be received until

5:00 p.m. on Thursday, December 18th.

· · Our next public hearing will be in hybrid format in Fremont

on Wednesday, December 3rd at 6:00 p.m. at the Olive Hyde Art

Center and Gallery at 123 Washington Boulevard in Fremont.

· · The third Public Hearing will be in Novato; also a hybrid

meeting on Thursday, December 4th at 6:00 p.m.· And the location

is the Best Western Plus Novato Oaks Inn at 215 Alameda

Del Prado in Novato.

· · Written comments may be submitted to info@planbayarea.org.

You may also mail those comments here to MTC Public Information

Office.· Attention:· Plan Bay Area at 375 Beale Street,

Suite 800, San Francisco, California 94105.

· · And I will note for Staff, if you could check on it, when I

check, when I click on the online comment form link on the

planbayarea.org Draft Plan, it doesn't click up to a form.· So,

if we could -- I don't know if that's just a mobile issue, but

if we could make sure that online form is also available for

persons.

· · If you are unable to write in your comments, you may leave a

voicemail for the Plan Bay Area public information line at

415-778-2292.

· · And because that's enough speaking for me, I'm going to hand

it over to my Co-Chair here, Commissioner Ahn.

· · CHAIR AHN:· Thank you, Chair Ramos.

· · And thank you all for your comments on the Draft Plan.

· · I will now open the Public Hearing on the Draft
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Environmental Impact Report for the Plan Bay Area 2050+.

· · This hearing is also being transcribed.· If you wish to

testify, please submit a speaker card.· Or if on Zoom, use the

"raised hand" feature or dial "*9," and myself or the Clerk will

call on you.

· · When making your comment, please state your name or wish to

be anonymous for the record and organization if applicable.· And

be sure to speak clearly into your microphone so that our

Certified Reporter, Roseleen O'Brien, can capture your comment

accurately.

· · Please be sure to keep your comments focused on the

Draft EIR for this second hearing.· We can ask you to keep your

comments brief.· And if you agree with the prior speaker, it's

sufficient to note that.· Your comments will still be counted on

the record.

· · And with that, we'll go to Public Comment.

· · THE CLERK:· Okay.· First speaker is going to be

Susan Kirsch followed by Ken Bukowski; then Elizabeth Henry.

· · MS. KIRSCH:· Susan Kirsch, Catalysts for Local Control.

· · I want to speak about the Draft EIR and especially about

Table 4-34, which is called Summary Comparison of Impacts for

the Proposed Plan and the Alternative Plans.

· · And what I want to call out in terms of context of this is,

so, the Draft EIR has been evaluated by the 14 components of

standard EIRs required by CEQA.· And they discovered that there

are 67 elements that they were evaluating in each of these four

categories of housing, transportation, economy, and environment,

and then along the 14 elements of the EIR.· And they rate them
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according to being -- having less-than-significant impact on the

environment to a rating of being significant and unavoidable.

And of the 67 comments -- items that they rated, 52 percent of

those items are rated as being significant and unavoidable.

· · Now, really, how can we be looking at a plan that is

intended to improve anything, and in the EIR those plans are

shown to have greater hazards than improvement?

· · And I'll give you a couple of examples.

· · On the issue of climate change, where Plan Bay Area was

introduced around that topic, the finding is that it will result

in a net increase of greenhouse gas emissions.

· · All right.· Let's go on and look at the issue of hazards and

wildfire.· Hazard Item 6, they find that this report can

interfere with evacuation routes.· They find that there will be

water and fire hazards.

· · You cannot approve a plan like this with this many hazards.

I urge you to redo.· Go back to the population figures and then

look at the EIR.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Ken Bukowski followed by Elizabeth Henry.

· · Mic's hot.

· · MR. BUKOWSKI:· Oh, thanks.

· · THE CLERK:· You're welcome.

· · MR. BUKOWSKI:· The Draft seems to indicate that we're going

to still have local land use control.· And all the existing

state legislation is wiping out local land use control.· So, I

don't know if that has been properly evaluated.· And the idea
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that we're having all this housing and no money for local

services, what result is that going to have?· I just see -- so

the document really needs to better evaluate that, that

circumstance.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Next up is going to be Elizabeth Henry.

· · MS. HENRY:· Hi.· Elizabeth Henry, Lafayette.· And I'm also a

member of Catalysts for Local Control.

· · There was a comment made a little bit ago that goes to the

heart of this entire situation, and it upsets me every time I

hear it.· The assumption that there is a severe shortage of

housing in the State of California.· That is a lie.

· · There are 1.7 million vacant, unoccupied housing units in

the State as we speak.· There is no housing shortage.

· · And I was an English major at Cal.· I know the difference

between the phrase "affordable housing" and "severe housing

shortage."· All the 500 bills use the term "severe housing

shortage" so that they can get their bills passed.· But in fact

those 500 pieces of legislation that have been passed have not

produced any affordable housing because they're not written to

do so.· They're written to take away local control.· They're

also giving more control and power to the billionaires that are

funding this entire farce on our, on our society in California.

· · 19 percent of the housing units in California are owned by

the billionaire land investors.· And may I add, those

billionaire land investors are the same billionaires that put

Trump, Donald Trump, in the White House.

· · So, you know, you need to go back to the drawing board and
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look at reality.· 1.7 million vacant housing units does not say

there's a housing shortage.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · That's all of our speakers in-house.

· · Next, we are going to go to Zoom.· Our first speaker is

going to be Tom Rubin followed by Mei-Ling Stefan.

· · Tom?· No.

· · Okay.· Mei-Ling Stefan?· Go ahead and unmute yourself.

· · Okay.· Our next speaker will be Gregg Dieguez followed by

Ann Duwe.

· · Gregg, can you hear me?

· · MR. DIEGUEZ:· Yeah.· Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Okay.

· · MR. DIEGUEZ:· You can hear me?

· · THE CLERK:· Yes, I can hear you.

· · MR. DIEGUEZ:· All right.· So, it should be obvious that any

Plan which results in a DEIR with two thirds of the impacts

significant and unavoidable is not a real Plan.

· · The current alternatives still rely on a transit network

design, which requires taking everybody from everywhere to the

same places at the same time.· And that's part of the problem.

It's expensive.· It creates peak demand themes and wastes money

the rest of the day.

· · Had there been better alternatives considered that didn't

keep pouring money into the current traditional transit

sinkhole, there would have been far fewer problems to mitigate

in this DEIR.

· · Currently traditional transit in the eight major Bay Area
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agencies is over seven times more expensive per passenger mile

than a cheap EV.· Traditional transit also ties up sixteen times

as much money in depreciating assets, unfunded retirement

benefits, and future asset replenishment burdens.· And

traditional transit pollutes more than an EV.

· · In Seoul, South Korea they recognized these issues.· And

instead of inflexible, expensive, fixed rail systems, they

broadened the use of express buses and bus lanes.

· · An emerging industry of autonomous vehicles, led in part by

the Bay Area, offers cheaper, less polluting alternatives that

can pick people up and, as airport vans do, route people

collectively on demand.

· · People don't want to carry their Thanksgiving turkeys home

in the rain.· Door-to-door distributed transit alternatives

should be a centerpiece of a newly designed transit alternative.

And this DEIR should be redone based on reasonable,

cost-effective, agile alternatives.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Our next speaker will be Ann Duwe followed by Tom Rubin.

· · Go ahead and unmute yourself.· Ann can you hear me?

· · MS. DUWE:· I can hear you, but I don't see the signal.

· · THE CLERK:· You can go ahead and talk.· I'll let you know

when your time's up.

· · MS. DUWE:· Okay.· It seems to me that buried deeply in the

Plan Bay Area is an assumption that so much housing is going to

be built that the cost will somehow magically revert to levels

not seen since the early 2000s.· I think that is magical
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thinking.

· · I would like to say that until the population assumptions

are valid, until the housing costs are valid, and until the

negative impacts associated with the Plan are abandoned or

overcome with better planning, the Draft EIR should not be even

brought up for a vote.

· · I think this Plan, while it has potential, is not yet

sufficiently truthful to conditions on the ground.· So, I urge

you to revisit those areas of the Plan that have been called

into question this morning.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Okay.· Our next speaker will be Tom Rubin.

· · Tom, you'll have two minutes.· When you have 15 seconds

left, I will say "15."

· · Go ahead and unmute yourself.

· · MR. RUBIN:· Thank you.· Tom Rubin again from the City of

Oakland and SHIFT.

· · Thank you for this opportunity, Commissioners.

· · What I want to comment on this time, I'll start with one

thing that is right in the Notice of Preparation of the EIS;

that this is a 1-trillion-475-billion plan and of that it will

require 862 billion of new funding.· And by the way, a lot of

existing funding, on my review, is not very secure.· That's

58 percent new funding.· That is $4,000 a year in new taxes from

every man, woman, and child in the Bay Area.

· · Do you really want to put your name on that?

· · What we have is an incredible number of assumptions; all of
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which are incredibly favorable.· And when you have a plan like

that, it's obvious it's going to fall apart as have your

previous plans.· And I'll be reporting on that and putting in

more detail.

· · So again, I urge you to go in, get help where needed, and

advise your Staff that they just have to do better.

· · I will remind you in closing that SHIFT, as it's now known,

and me personally, I was the one who found the error in RM4 that

was in the actual ballot language and which appeared to be the

final straw that finally got the Commission to take it off the

ballot.

· · We are going to be looking again.

· · And I thank you very much for making so many incredible

mistakes in the report and the EIS.· We will use this in

fighting your tax proposals.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · Next speaker will be Dan Haggerty followed by

Mei-Ling Stefan.

· · Dan, go ahead.

· · MR. HAGGERTY:· Yes.· So, can you hear me?

· · THE CLERK:· Yes, we can.

· · MR. HAGGERTY:· Okay.· Dan Haggerty again from El Granada,

San Mateo Coastside.

· · I want to say that I agree with the comments on the EIR of

Susan Kirsch, Elizabeth Henry, Gregg Dieguez, and Tom Rubin.

· · And I really strongly believe this whole thing needs to be

taken back to the drawing board and include a true robust

outreach.
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· · (Audio disruption.)

· · MS. STEFAN:· Hello.· My name is Mei-Ling Stefan from

Sunnyvale.· Is it my turn to speak?

· · MS. KANE:· Not yet.· We're having some technical issues with

the broadcast.· And I believe that they're fixing them right

now.· So, hold tight.· And the Clerk will let you know.

· · MS. STEFAN:· Yes.· Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· We're paused right now, y'all.· If you can just

bear with us a moment, we'll be right back.

· · Were going to take a ten-minute recess at this time.

· · (Recess.)

· · MS. KANE:· This is Kathleen Kane.· I'm general counsel for

MTC and related entities.

· · I apologize for our pause here.· We had some of our

broadcast capacity in the building go down.· We are trying to

restore it.· And we will be resuming here within about

five minutes, hopefully with full broadcast restored.

· · This Zoom link is active.· And members of the public who are

on it to participate, we will continue with the public hearing

once we have that technical issue taken care of.

· · I do want to note, Mr. Haggerty, you were midway through

your comments when the broadcast went down.· So, if you're still

here and able to resume when we're back up, that would be great.

· · And if anyone in the Zoom space wishes to speak on the EIR

hearing, if you could raise your hands now so that our clerk

staff can find you in the attendee links and make sure we have a

handle on who wants to speak.

· · Also, a reminder that for anyone who is affected by this,
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there are the capacity for written public comment on the EIR

that is open for some weeks afterwards and -- so after this

meeting.· So, we want to make sure that we get your input as

well.

· · Thanks very much.· It should be about five more minutes.

And we do apologize for the delay.

· · (Recess.)

· · CHAIR AHN:· So, I think we're going to turn it over to our

counsel Kathleen Kane to make sure that we're on the level.

· · Kathleen, are you on the line?

· · MS. KANE:· Yes, I'm here.

· · And I want to thank everyone for their patience as we worked

through our technological issues in the building.

· · We are back live and resuming the Public Hearing on the

Draft EIR, which is continuing.

· · When we last left off, Mr. Haggerty was midway through his

comments.· So, if you're able to resume and restart your time on

the full two minutes to do that, that would be great.

· · I also want to encourage anyone who is, you know, having any

difficulties with this or knows of anyone who had to drop off

the meeting during the interim to please submit your comments

via writing or, you know, through the other mechanisms available

on the Draft EIR.· We do want to make sure that we receive your

comments.· And the Public Comment period remains open after this

hearing.

· · So with that, thank you very much to everyone who waited.

And we are back underway.

· · CHAIR AHN:· And thank you to the general public for your
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patience.

· · With that, we'll go to Dan Haggerty, if Dan's available.

· · THE CLERK:· Dan, you have to unmute yourself.

· · MR. HAGGERTY:· Can you hear me?

· · THE CLERK:· Yes, we can.

· · MR. HAGGERTY:· Okay.· Yeah.· Again, Dan Haggerty.

El Granada, San Mateo Coastside.

· · I want to say I agree with the comments on the EIR from

Susan Kirsch, Elizabeth Henry, Gregg Dieguez, and Tom Rubin and

others of the Catalysts for Local Control.

· · This needs to go back to the drawing board and include a

true robust outreach to the citizens of the region who will be

dramatically affected by the added taxes and degraded living

condition as a result.

· · I want to continue and say that all the time I'm witnessing

near misses of injuries in San Francisco and other Bay Area

cities.· A lot of the recent so-called improvements have many

unanticipated negative results that are not being addressed.

· · One example, the recent bike lanes on proposed Highway 1 in

the coastside.· You know, this area, there's a lot of -- every

area is different, but what's happening is it seems like this

cookie cutter method of putting the same thing everywhere.

· · Every different neighborhood has different needs and issues.

We have a off-the-highway bike lane currently that needs to be

expanded and brought further north.· But, you know, with all

these cars coming out of these neighborhoods, right now they

have to, you know, give attention to just to the two cars when

they make a left turn.· And now in the future, it'll have not
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only the two cars but different rate of speed of bicycles,

e-bikes, scooters, et cetera.

· · So, many of these things need to be relooked at closely.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you, Dan.

· · Next is Mei-Ling Stefan followed by Robert Cox.

· · MS. STEFAN:· Hello.· My name is Mei-Ling Stefan from

Sunnyvale.

· · I agree with previous speakers and the conclusion that we

need to go back to the drawing board.

· · There are many significant and unavoidable impacts as listed

in Table ES-1, starting on page 29 of the DEIR pdf document.

· · Please do not approve the EIR with an overriding statement

to wave away these concerns or we may end up with negative

impacts even if we do not get any benefits as advertised.

· · The worst of the negative impacts may be self-inflicted by

Plan 2050 based on the Plan's assumptions of increases in

population and transit and the focus on urban cause.

· · For example, if the Plan projections were correct, alarms

should be sounded now for the shortage of landfills for urban

core areas as detailed on page 692 and Table 3.14-5 in the DEIR.

· · Solid waste will have to be transported longer distances to

unfilled or newly constructed landfills in less populated areas.

Our sewer system consists of more than wastewater treatment

plants.· And many of our cities' aging sewer pipes should be

considered in the EIR.

· · Cost estimates should be provided for improving or building

new infrastructure for public facilities.· The premise of

bumping up job and housing in urban cores should be examined.
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· · Wouldn't it be more beneficial and equitable to increase

jobs in job-poor, less-urbanized areas where living expenses are

lower?

· · Also, please examine the greenhouse gas emissions of

concrete used in constructions.

· · Thank you.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · And the next speaker will be Robert Cox.

· · Go ahead and unmute yourself.

· · MR. COX:· Thank you for the opportunity to follow-up on

this.

· · You know, in eight years in serving on the Planning

Commission in Mountain View, adopting a Statement of Overriding

Considerations is a truly serious matter and should only be

taken after careful and correct analysis and, and understanding

that the community interests override the problems that are

going to come from taking that Statement of Overriding

Considerations.

· · I mean when I was on the Planning Commission, we must have

viewed pretty much 50 different projects.· And we only had to do

the Statement of Overriding Considerations maybe three times.

· · And, you know, but the sad thing about this, as many

speakers have already mentioned, is that the results of the

analysis leading to the desire for a Statement of Overriding

Considerations is based on faulty population and job

projections.

· · And so I mean, you know, that's where we need to just go

back to the drawing board and get correct input data to assess
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what is the actual situation likely to be over this next 25-year

period and then see whether we even need this Statement of

Overriding Considerations.

· · Thank you for listening to what I have to say.

· · THE CLERK:· Thank you.

· · There are no other members of the public in the boardroom or

Zoom wishing to speak on this item.

· · CHAIR AHN:· Thank you, Martha.

· · We don't have anyone else in the comment queue.· As such, I

now declare the public hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact

Report for Plan Bay Area 2050+ to be closed.

· · That said, now I'd like to ask the Clerk whether any written

comments were received on Agenda Item 8A?

· · THE CLERK:· We received written correspondence from

Sandra J. Bushmaker, Susan Kirschman, Founder and Director of

Catalysts for Local Control; and we received two comment letters

from Robert Cox at 4:10 and 4:33.· All comments received were

posted online and distributed to all Commissioners and Committee

Members.

· · CHAIR AHN:· Okay.· Thank you.

· · In addition to these comments and all written comments,

public comments received prior to 5:00 p.m. today will be posted

to MTC's website and will become a part of the record of these

proceedings.

· · With that said, are there any Committee Members who would

like to comment on this item?

· · Yes.· Please, Commissioner Burt.

· · COMMISSIONER BURT:· Thank you.
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· · So, as we heard from a lot of members of the public had real

questions on why we have the 2050+ Plan that is based upon the

older and now outdated DOF-growth projections, not to mention

that we have DOT-growth projections that are in line with those

as well.

· · And my understanding is that there are actual constraints on

what can be the basis for this current Plan, legal constraints

through a settlement agreement and back I think in 2013 with the

Building Council, the RHNA allocations.

· · And I think that it's really imperative that even though

Staff and long-time Commission Members may understand that whole

context, many of us really don't.· And much of the public does

not.

· · And so, I wanted to see how we can really get that, the

foundational conditions that we're forced to operate under, in a

more both public and systematic refresher.

· · I know that in early 2026, we will be working on the 2060

Plan Bay Area.· And that will allow us to have, you know, maybe

a beginning study session that would really lay this framework

out there.

· · But I think even absent -- or anticipating that, we still

have a real issue on everyone understanding why we're operating

with a plan that is really fundamentally different from the

growth projections that we're receiving from the State.

Including, I should have said, that also a lot the premises that

those projections don't really include induced growth, which is

a lot of the State objective.

· · Thank you.
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· · CHAIR AHN:· Member Ecklund, did you want to also chime in?

· · COUNCILMEMEBER ECKLUND:· Thank you very much.

· · First of all, I wanted to thank all the folks who spoke and

submitted comments on this Plan as well as on the Draft EIR.

· · I also want to thank Staff also, too, for the incredible

work that you put into this.· It's a lot of work, I know, but

it's really important.

· · I had similar issues about the population projections and

actually the relationship with 2050+ as how it's related to 2050

and how it, how 2060, comes into play here.

· · And I feel very strongly that we need to be, as my previous

Commissioner stated, a little bit more transparent on why some

of the numbers are the way they are.· And so that -- and

recognizing that Staff agrees with some of the comments that

were made that, you know, they're not necessarily realistic.

· · And so, I think that actually having an explanation on that

would be very helpful.

· · For me, I think it's important for this body to have a

discussion after the close of the Public Comment period and

after Staff has had a time to look at all the comments, to have

a study session or a work session with us about -- you know,

because these are the comments.· These are the things that we

need to explain a little bit more clearer in the final document

so that all of us can provide some input as to, are there others

that we should include?

· · My feeling is that I would not want to just go from this

draft right to a Draft Final.· I'd like to be able to have some

impact into some of that because we might want to change, if we
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can, some of the areas.

· · There's a couple of other things too.· I was fairly

frustrated, which I don't get too often, but when I went on the

ABAG website, I could not find the EIR.· I could not find the

Draft Plan Bay Area.· And it's not on the main page, where, if

you go to MTC's, it's on the main page.· And it's on the main

page of, quote, Plan Bay Area.

· · But I went to the ABAG's website.· And I want to thank Dave

for explaining this to me.· But we -- ABAG is a main partner in

this.· And so, I think it's important for ABAG to also have in

our main page Plan Bay Area 2050+ so that people don't have to

try to search.

· · In fact I did a search on ABAG's website.· I couldn't even

find the EIR or the Plan Bay Area on there.· So it may not,

you know, my computer may not have been sensitive, or not, to

all of that.· But I felt that ABAG was being left out a little

bit.· So it'd be nice to have that on there.

· · But I think also, too, this update seems to really relate

more to transportation or vehicle miles traveled, or whatever,

changes.

· · But I don't think we've had adequate discussion on the

housing and what is the housing differences, if there is any,

for 2050+.

· · And if we're not going to be addressing those in 2050+, then

at least explain how we're going to be looking at it in 2060 in

the next one.· Because the housing numbers may change based on

the population changes that are happening in the Bay Area.

· · And also, too, I think that what this group needs to have a
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discussion about, the RHNA numbers and how those are looking

too.· Because we really haven't had a really good discussion on

that recently to see whether or not, you know, what else we

could do to help cities and counties achieve more of the numbers

or at least try to change them or how they're calculated for the

next RHNA cycle, which I guess will be coming up in four years

or some time in the future.· I don't even know when that is.

· · Usually in hearings that I've gone to we've had a

presentation on what the documents are that we're given like a

main presentation on, okay, there's two documents that are going

to be talked about.

· · Because I don't think it was clear to all of the audience

members or, frankly, to some of us that there's two documents

that we're really looking at, one is the actual Plan and the

other one is the environmental documentation.

· · And my concern is that with the next upcoming hearings,

which is in Fremont and Novato, I'm going to really try really

hard to see if I can go to that Fremont one even though it's

going to be a challenge but...· And I will be there for the

Novato one.· And I understand why we're not necessarily having

the hearing before this body in those different locations, but I

think it's important for the board members here to at least get

some more immediate feedback on what comments were made at those

other two hearings that are coming up.

· · And so I know that I, if I weren't able to go to both of

them, I'd like to know, okay, in Fremont these were the issues

that were raised.· And I did mention that to Dave Vautin too.

Because I think it just will help me.· And I'm assuming it will
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help other folks as well.

· · I have some other comments too, but I will reserve them.  I

just wanted to hit the most important ones.

· · And I just, again, want to thank all the Staff for really

putting a lot of time into this.· And I know it's frustrating

not only for you guys but for us, as well, and the public.

· · But thank you very much.

· · CHAIR AHN:· I believe, Chair Ramos.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Yes.

· · Thank you, Director Ecklund.

· · And regards to RHNA calculations and how that is going to

work towards the next cycle and to assist cities, I have had

this conversation with Daniel Saver actually to look at how

we're going to engage our next committee, the Legislation

Committee, as HCD is already promulgating its data entry points

that will influence the ultimate outcome number that comes to us

that we will then apply the methodology to.

· · Did I get that all right, Dave?· Yeah.· Great.· Thanks for

the assist there, Dave Vautin, on the thumbs-up.

· · So, I have already had that conversation.· So you could --

that is -- it's forthcoming.· We are going to be engaged.· And

that's fair.

· · Next, you know, one of the other things that we will

continuously look at, REAP was instrumental in being able to

provide the technical assistance to jurisdictions and being able

to deploy their, their housing elements and not only just to

meet the deadlines but also to really think more creatively in

how they were going to do so.· So, our advocacy will remain in
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that space to make sure this is a priority at CALCOG that ABAG

has a seat at.· And so, more to come on that.· But as you know,

money is short.

· · So what I also will say is for the benefit of everyone, the

Fremont and the Novato sessions are hybrid sessions.· So, you

actually do not have to be there in person.

· · I think it would be helpful to hear from Staff if we're

going to have a court reporter there as well; correct?

· · Okay.· So, we will have a court reporter there as well.

That information will be provided to us.

· · I want to thank staff, technical staff, for making the

adjustment on the website already on the planbayarea/ --

planbayarea -- what you --

· · I'm done.· I'm done for the day.· That technical break

really hit me hard.

· · But thank you so much for the form.· The Public Comment form

is now easily available.· And when you click, it goes down to

where the form is at.· So, thank you so much.

· · I think those are some incredibly valid comments in regards

to the landing page of ABAG.· And if we could make sure the

Staff could see about integrating a similar, comparable

appearance and prominence on the ABAG website.· Thank you.

· · We will now go on to Councilmember Silva.· No.· Yes,

Councilmember Silva.

· · COUNCILMEMBER SILVA:· Thank you very much.· And I'll make

this very brief.

· · I appreciated all the comments from the public and the

preceding comments from our two colleagues on these commissions.
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· · I think it is important that we fundamentally understand how

the numbers were derived.· Because if there are discrepancies

between the State's numbers, the Department of Finance, and what

we're using as our baseline numbers, we need to understand as

Commissioners and subsequently the public what is causing that.

And that will help us not only be transparent but help everyone

understand why we're where we are and what's going on.

· · So, thank you very much.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Okay.· Any other from the dais here?

· · Okay.· So, I am going to call on Supervisor Williams just

for commenting purposes, but Supervisor Williams is not a voting

participant today.

· · SUPERVISOR WILLIAMS:· Thank you, Chair.· I appreciate the

opportunity to speak.

· · I want to echo Director Silva and Ecklund's comments.· Most

importantly, I think it is a great idea to have a study session,

especially for those coming in and still growing in this space,

especially with the Plan 2050+ and then we're going to be

transitioning to '26 to really understand the methodology and

how it's conducted.

· · And I would like us to definitely focus on housing.· Because

we know based on the research that was in the report that

there's a lot of fears around housing and not having enough

housing available.

· · So, I just wanted to add those comments.

· · Thank you for an opportunity to share my thoughts.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Thank you.

· · CHAIR AHN:· So with that, thank you for participating in
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today's public hearings.

· · Please remember that the Public Comment period on the Draft

Plan, its related supplemental reports, and the Draft EIR will

remain open until 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, December 18th, 2025.

And MTC and ABAG will continue to accept written and oral

comments until then.· Complete details on the various ways to

submit comments are available on the planbayarea.org website.

· · Upon the close of the comment period on December 18th, 2025,

Staff will prepare a summary of all Public Comments received to

inform our decision-making prior to considering adoption of the

Draft Plan and its related supplemental reports and

certification of the Draft Environmental Impact Report for Plan

Bay Area 2050+.

· · The Commission and ABAG Executive Board will continue to

consider adopting the Draft Plan and certifying the Draft EIR at

a joint meeting of the Commission and ABAG Executive Board in

early 2026.

· · With that, I believe we're now at Agenda Item 9, Public

Comment and other businesses.

· · Is there any general Public Comment for items not listed on

today's Agenda?

· · THE CLERK:· There is no written correspondence received on

this item.· And there is no one in the boardroom or Zoom wishing

to speak on this item.

· · CHAIR RAMOS:· Thank you so much.

· · The next meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee will

be held on Friday, December 12th at 9:40 a.m. at the Bay Area

Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, California.· Any
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changes to the schedule will be duly noticed to the public.

· · This meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee is

adjourned.

· · CHAIR AHN:· I'm going to try to match that pacing.

· · The next meeting of the MTC Planning Committee will be held

on Friday, December 12th at 9:40 a.m. at the Bay Area Metro

Center, 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, California.· Any

changes to the schedule will be duly noticed to the public.

· · This meet of the MTC Planning Committee is adjourned.

· · Thank you.

· · (Reporting concluded.)

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ---o0o---
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